

# **Independent research & further reading**

Guest: Bill Von Hippel

**Disclaimer 1:** The literature presented here, directly (or as closely as possible) looks at statements made by the guest. In order to fully understand each topic mentioned, an extensive literature review (beyond the scope of this document) would be required.

**Disclaimer 2:** The information provided in this podcast and any associated materials is not intended to replace professional medical advice. For any medical concerns, it is essential to consult a qualified health professional.

#### Contents

Chimpanzees violence within their own group	3
Living alone	3
Seeing your neighbours	3
Married couples spending less time together	3
Hazda people	3
Children deaths 100 years ago	4
Living in cities vs in the country and wealth	4
Relationships in rural vs urban areas	4
Economically-challenged people and friendships	4
High testosterone and attractiveness	5
Sexual plasticity	5
Genetics of homosexuality	5
Genetic factors predisposing to homosexuality and increased mating success	6
Relationship preference and education level	6
Self-control and academic success	6
Women's preference for higher-income men	6
Decline of sexual behaviour	7
Pornography	7
Fertility rates	7
Endocrine disrupters	7
Hormones released by parents	8
Marriage and happiness	8

World population and fertility rates	8
Men vs women friendships	10
Introversion/extroversion	10
Heritability	11
Genetics of obesity	11
High-toxin environments and neurodivergent conditions	11
Heritability of ADHD	11
Electrodes for treatment-resistant depression	12
Anxiety	12
Religion and happiness	12
Marriage benefits: is it gender-specific?	12
Hunter gatherers and marriage	13
Testicle size of humans vs gorillas	13
Genetics of religion	13
Money and happiness	14
Having a pet: relationship to happiness	14
Collaborative pursuit of goals	14
Alcohol consumption and heart rate variability and resting heart rate	14
Alcohol consumption and exercise	15
Alcohol consumption and cortisol levels	15
Gender differences in sleep duration needs	15
References	16

#### Chimpanzees violence within their own group

"So if you look at chimpanzees and how violent they are to other groups of chimpanzees and how violent they are within their own group, they are about 600 times as violent as we are within their own group. So 600 times as likely to hit or bite or otherwise harm members of their own group as well."

Chimpanzees exhibit non-lethal physical aggression at levels 100 to 1,000 times higher than humans (1).

# Living alone

""In 18 51% of Americans lived alone. Now it's a one in 100 now it's one in seven. So you know, here we are, 170 years LA, and 75 years later. And it used to be crazy rare, and now it's one in seven. It's pretty darn common."

The number of people living alone in the United States has increased significantly, with 28% of households being one-person households in 2019 compared to 13% in 1960. Interestingly, the increase in one-person households has outpaced total population growth since 1960. Long-term historical data from 1850 to 2015 reveal that societal, cultural, economic, and legislative changes have influenced this trend.

References 2-5.

#### Seeing your neighbours

"about 30% of people saw their neighbors, got together with their neighbors, not visually seeing them, but got together with their neighbors at least a few times a week, and only one in five pretty much never saw their neighbors at all"

Reference 6.

#### Married couples spending less time together

"married couples are spending less time together"

Reference 7.

# Hazda people

"Hadza people over 90% are happy"

Reference 8.

# Children deaths 100 years ago

"And you know, even if we look back 100 years, 100 years ago, a quarter of the children died by 150 years ago, a quarter of the children died by the time they turned five"

Reference 9.

# Living in cities vs in the country and wealth

"People who live in cities in the United States, for example, are about 25% wealthier than people who live in the country"

People living in urban areas in the United States tend to be wealthier and have better health outcomes, including longer life expectancy and lower mortality rates, compared to those living in rural areas.

References 10-12.

# Relationships in rural vs urban areas

"people in rural areas are much more satisfied with their friendships and relationships than those that live in urban areas."

References 13-16.

# **Economically-challenged people and friendships**

"poor people are happier with their friendships"

Poor people may be happier with their friendships due to the importance of deep social connections and non-material aspects of life, although this happiness is influenced by various factors such as economic stability and social exclusion.

References 17-19.

#### High testosterone and attractiveness

"high testosterone men are more likely to pair up. They take these risks. Women find them attractive at some level, even if they don't personally feel like it's attractive at the moment, but something about that is attractive to them"

High testosterone in men is associated with increased mating success and attraction to women, particularly for short-term relationships, due to enhanced sociosexuality, perceived dominance, and risk-taking behaviours.

References 20-23.

#### **Sexual plasticity**

"women have a lot more of what we call sexual plasticity than men"

Women exhibit greater sexual plasticity than men, as their sexual behaviours and attitudes are more influenced by sociocultural, situational, and environmental factors.

References 24, 25.

#### **Genetics of homosexuality**

"there's a lot of genes that contribute to homosexuality, and the more of those genes you have, you know, most, most human behaviors are driven by a number of genes, not just one. We call them polygenic. A whole bunch of genes contribute to a particular behavior, and especially a complex behavior like so homosexuality"

" this paper was published in Science, if I remember right, a few years ago, and laid out the genes. And they don't make sense. Some of them relate to your sense of smell. There. We don't understand these polygenic scores very well yet."

Studies suggest that male homosexuality may be influenced by genetic factors, with potential contributions from regions on chromosomes Xq28 and 8, and possibly other polygenic influences, but no single gene has a strong influence. While early studies reported this linkage between homosexuality and the Xq28 chromosomal region, subsequent research has not confirmed this finding. Genome-wide scans have identified potential candidate regions on chromosomes 7q36, 8p12, and 10q26. Despite progress, further research is needed to understand the genetic basis of sexual orientation and how sociocultural influences may interact with genetic predispositions.

References 26-32.

# Genetic factors predisposing to homosexuality and increased mating success

"men who have more gay genes, but are still straight, have more sexual partners than men who have fewer gay genes and are also straight."

Reference 33.

#### **Relationship preference and education level**

"women are looking for men who are as as educated as themselves or more, and men are looking for women who are as educated themselves or less they don't."

Recent research shows that women with higher education levels are more likely to form relationships with less educated men rather than staying single. Meanwhile, women with moderate education levels are less likely to form relationships with highly educated men. For men, there is no indication that they have a greater tendency to partner with highly educated women.

References 34-36.

#### Self-control and academic success

*"if you look at success in the world, self control is a bigger predictive than IQ"* 

Self-control is a significant predictor of academic success and long-term life outcomes, often surpassing or complementing the predictive power of intelligence.

References 37-41.

# Women's preference for higher-income men

"if women are looking for men that have more resources than them on average, which is what I read in some of the studies that I think it was, roughly 70% of women say they want a man that has equal or more money than they do"

In an online dating experiment, women visited male profiles with higher incomes more frequently, with this effect increasing as women's own incomes rose. However, conflicting evidence suggests that wealth may not be as important to women as previously thought, with one study finding women less interested in wealthier men. Additionally, both men and women tend to seek partners with similar incomes to their own, regardless of local resource pressures.

References 42-44.

#### Decline of sexual behaviour

*"if you look at young, single people, their actual sexual behavior is going down. They're having less sex than they were 20 years ago"* 

Research shows that contemporary young adults are not reporting more sexual partners or more frequent sex compared to earlier generations. In fact, there's evidence of a decrease in casual sexual encounters among young adults aged 18-23.

References 45, 46.

# Pornography

"a percentage of 18 to 25 year olds who had had sex or watched porn within the last year, and about 80% of 18 to 25 year olds had had sex in the last year. And now it's getting down nearer to 65 70%"

A recent study of Australian youth found that 86% of males and 69% of females reported exposure to pornography. In an older study in the United States, 87% of young men and 31% of young women have been reported using pornography. However, a more recent study showed young men were more likely to seek out pornography and view it frequently, with 54% reporting weekly use compared to 14% of women.

References 47, 48.

# **Fertility rates**

"fertility rates are going way down"

Recent studies indicate a global decline in fertility rates, with most developed countries falling below replacement levels.

References 49, 50.

# **Endocrine disrupters**

"There's so many hormone mimics in our environment, in plastics, in various pollutants that change our endocrine system, that reduce sperm counts, we think that's what's going on. And reduce sperm count often is associated with reduced sex drive, et cetera."

Endocrine-disrupting chemicals can affect the endocrine system by mimicking or blocking hormones, leading to disruptions in development, reproduction, metabolism, and potentially contributing to diseases. Compounds like PCBs and phthalates may negatively impact sperm count

and quality, although there is no consistent evidence of a global decline in sperm counts due to these factors.

References 51-59.

#### Hormones released by parents

"the parent releases certain hormones in the child by their touch, the oxytocin"

Reference 60.

# Marriage and happiness

"percentage of Americans who are very happy or not too happy as a function of marital status, quite clearly shows that if you want to be happy, you should be married, and if you want to be not too happy, you should be separated"

- Happiness itself appears to enhance marriage prospects, suggesting a bidirectional relationship. (61)
- A longitudinal study in Korea showed that a positive effect of marriage on life satisfaction persists for at least six years. (62)
- Marriage temporarily boosts well-being before returning to baseline. It is important to note, however, that while marriage doesn't seem to create lasting changes in life satisfaction, it may offer other benefits. (63)
- Happiness gaps between spouses seem to predict future divorce, with couples more likely to separate when the wife is less happy (64).
- Negative communication and emotional exchanges before and during the early years of marriage are significant predictors of marital distress and eventual divorce (65).

Marital satisfaction before marriage can be influenced by various factors, including personality traits, temperament, communication skills, and individual psychological characteristics.

# World population and fertility rates

*"if you look at the current population the globe, it's meant to peak somewhere between, say, 2070 and 2090 probably around 8 billion and some change, and then it start to go down"* 

"the consequence is that in every single country that's industrialized and rich, the reproduction the reproductive rate of females is less than 2.1 per female, which is what you need in order to maintain population at the current level. And so every single country on Earth is shrinking it, but for immigration. And so right now, you know, we have all these fights about immigration, people arguing, well, we don't want to let x into my country. It's going to be, I promise you, in 50 years, that arguments can be the exact opposite. How can we convince people of Country X to come into our country? Because we're going to shrink and disappear. There's a lot of countries that are going to be literally half their size by the year 2100 because they're shrinking so fast, really, half of East Asia, half of Western Europe, they're just shrinking crazy fast."

By 2050, projections indicate that 151 countries will have a total fertility rate below the replacement level, with this number rising to 183 by 2100. In this scenario, 23 nations—including Japan, Thailand, and Spain—are expected to experience population declines exceeding 50% between 2017 and 2100.



References 66-71.

"Map of the year that the net reproduction rate falls below the replacement level" from <u>Vollset et al. (2020)</u>.

Flat Cartogram: the spatial distribution of shrinking cities on the globe and the shrinking city proportion at the country level 2000-19



"Flat cartogram of 2020–2100 shrinking cities (SCs) on the globe at the country level." from Wang and Long (2023).

#### Men vs women friendships

"women form tighter bonds with smaller groups of friends. Men form looser bonds with larger groups of friends."

Reference 72.

#### Introversion/extroversion

"evolutionary basis for introversion and extroversion? Is it? Is it a real thing? It is a real thing. It's highly heritable"

While there is evidence supporting a genetic component to introversion and extroversion, environmental factors also significantly influence these traits. The interaction between genetic predispositions and environmental experiences shapes the expression of these personality characteristics.

References 73-76.

# Heritability

"behavioral genetics is that, on average, things are 50% heritable"

Reference 77.

# **Genetics of obesity**

"you can see that you're much more likely to be overweight, if your polygenic score, if your genes push you toward obesity. But lots of people with with overweight genes are normal weight. It just means that they have to work harder to get there"

Obesity has a significant genetic component, accounting for over 40% of the variability in body weight, with higher heritability in individuals with obesity. However, not everyone with a genetic predisposition becomes obese, indicating the significant impact of environmental factors.

References 78-81.

# High-toxin environments and neurodivergent conditions

"when we look at the epidemiological data, it seems to be associated with high toxin environments"

The etiology of ADHD is complex and multifactorial, involving genetic, environmental, and social factors. Recent research has highlighted the potential role of environmental toxins, namely lead and PCBs in the development and exacerbation of ADHD symptoms.

References 82, 83.

# Heritability of ADHD

"Now, ADHD is a different ball of wax. We know it's highly heritable."

ADHD is a highly heritable disorder, with genetic factors playing a significant role in its development. Research consistently shows that ADHD has a strong genetic component, with heritability estimates ranging from 70% to 80% in children and somewhat lower in adults due to methodological differences in studies.

References 84-86.

#### **Electrodes for treatment-resistant depression**

"There's some kinds of depression that just are untreatable. And for some of those people, they literally insert an electrode into their brain and stimulate this particular region. And the people who experience it say it's like my world was in black and white, and suddenly it became in color, like I've got this neural implant, and it's making my life worth living again."

Deep brain stimulation is an emerging treatment for severe, treatment-resistant depression.

References 87-89.

#### Anxiety

*"If you could get yourself to be mindful in the moment and set aside the future. Your anxiety will disappear because it's all future based"* 

Being present in the moment, often referred to as mindfulness, can help reduce anxiety, but it may not completely eliminate it.

References 90-93.

#### **Religion and happiness**

"people that are associated with religious participation are typically more happy than those who are not"

Research indicates that individuals who participate in religious activities tend to report higher levels of happiness compared to those who do not. This positive association is influenced by various factors, including social support, community involvement, and personal belief systems.

References 94-98.

# Marriage benefits: is it gender-specific?

"marriage is more beneficial for men's longevity than it is for women's"

Marriage appears to be more beneficial for men's longevity than for women's. Research shows that married men experience greater health and longevity benefits compared to their unmarried counterparts, while the benefits for women are less pronounced.

References 99-101.

"Men will live an extra two years if they're married, and women will only live an extra year and a half if they're married."

Reference 102.

# Hunter gatherers and marriage

"from his life experience with them, that about 20% of them stay married for life, so one in five, which is not high, very low. Now, if you think about it, why is that such a high divorce rate? Well, hunter gatherers don't institutionalize marriage the way that agriculturalists do."

In hunter-gatherer societies like the G | ui and Gllana, divorce is widely accepted and woven into social norms that encourage remarriage and maintain strong kinship ties. Adults often marry multiple times throughout their lives, making stepfamilies a common part of social life. After a divorce, children typically live with a remarried parent or stepparent, and caregiving is shared among stepparents, relatives, and the broader community. This communal approach to childcare reflects the cooperative nature of these societies, where frequent movement between camps reinforces a culture of resource sharing and mutual support. As families adapt to changing circumstances, flexible marital relationships and strong social bonds help individuals navigate both personal and societal shifts with ease.

References 103-106.

#### Testicle size of humans vs gorillas

Human testicles are proportionally larger than those of gorillas, suggesting distinct reproductive strategies shaped by evolutionary pressures. This difference likely reflects higher sperm competition in humans compared to gorillas.

References 107-109.

#### **Genetics of religion**

"So religion has two components. There's the genetic component. And interestingly, the genetics of religion are religiosity. How religious you are, that's highly heritable"

While specific religious affiliations are primarily influenced by environmental factors, general religious beliefs and practices are moderately heritable, with genetic influences increasing with age.

References 110-112.

#### **Money and happiness**

"money does make you as happy as you think it would, but it does help"

*"if you have disposable income, it makes you a lot happier when you spend it on things to do, rather than things to have."* 

The relationship between money and happiness is complex and multifaceted. While money can contribute to happiness, its impact varies based on how it is earned, spent, and perceived.

References 113-117.

# Having a pet: relationship to happiness

"the data show that having a pet actually makes people quitehappy,"

While having a pet can enhance happiness and well-being for many individuals, the effects are not uniform and depend on various personal and contextual factors. The relationship between pet ownership and happiness is complex, with both positive and mixed outcomes reported across different studies.

References 118-120.

# **Collaborative pursuit of goals**

"doing lifestyle goals with others actually makes you more like an achievement, especially if they're a new goal for you"

Collaboration with others in pursuing lifestyle goals can significantly enhance goal achievement through increased motivation, effort, and social support.

References 121-123.

# Alcohol consumption and heart rate variability and resting heart rate

"we know that alcohol, every every drink, every alcoholic drink that I have, raises my resting heart rate by, I think it's about a beat, beat and a half, if I remember, right, and lowers my HRV by like three points. If I remember right, I could be getting those numbers a little bit off, but it's that kind of magnitude every drink just it's this linear effect up to at least 10 drinks."

One alcoholic drink does not seem to affect HRV. However, a study found that two glasses of either red wine or ethanol decreased total HRV by 28-33% (124). In a review article, the authors concluded that in nondependent individuals, low alcohol intake is linked to higher HRV, while heavier

consumption is associated with lower HRV compared to both abstainers and moderate drinkers. In dependent individuals, HRV improved with abstinence but remained lower than in nonalcoholic controls (125).

#### Alcohol consumption and exercise

"So I get exercise in the morning, then I drink, and the impact of the drink is worse because I exercised"

The guest is talking about unpublished data. However, data on drinking after exercise shows it can hinder muscle recovery and performance (126).

#### Alcohol consumption and cortisol levels

"I don't think alcohol raises your cortisol. Very strong diurnal I don't know. I know nothing about it, so I'm ignorant."

Alcohol consumption, both acute and chronic, is associated with increased cortisol levels, which can have significant implications for stress response and health. The effects can vary based on gender, drinking patterns, and individual psychological traits.

References 127-129.

# Gender differences in sleep duration needs

"men need less sleep than women"

While women often report poorer sleep quality and face more sleep disturbances due to hormonal and life changes, they tend to sleep longer than men. The differences in sleep needs are complex and influenced by biological, psychological, and social factors rather than a simple requirement for less sleep in men.

References 130-132.

#### References

- Wrangham, R., Wilson, M., & Muller, M. (2005). Comparative rates of violence in chimpanzees and humans. Primates, 47, 14-26.
- 2. <u>Michael, R., Fuchs, V., & Scott, S. (1980). changes in the propensity to live alone: 1950–1976.</u> Demography, 17, 39-56.
- 3. <u>Belcher, J.C. (1967). The One-Person Household: A Consequence of the Isolated Nuclear</u> <u>Family? Journal of Marriage and Family, 29, 534.</u>
- 4. <u>Reher, D.S., & Requena, M. (2020). Long-term trends in living alone in later life in the United</u> <u>States, 1850-2015. The History of the Family, 25, 455 - 483.</u>
- 5. Wu, H. (2017). FP-17-18 Twenty-Five-Year Trends in Living Alone in the U.S., 1990 & 2015.
- 6. <u>Guest, A.M., & Wierzbicki, S.K. (1999). Social Ties at the Neighborhood Level. Urban Affairs</u> <u>Review, 35, 111 - 92.</u>
- 7. <u>Amato, P.R. et al. (2007). Alone Together: How Marriage in America Is Changing. Harvard</u> <u>University Press.</u>
- Frąckowiak, T., Oleszkiewicz, A., Butovskaya, M., Groyecka, A., Karwowski, M., Kowal, M., & Sorokowski, P. (2020). Subjective Happiness Among Polish and Hadza People. Frontiers in Psychology, 11.
- 9. Data for the UK from the Office for National Statistics
- 10. Essletzbichler, J. (2015). The top 1% in U.S. metropolitan areas. Applied Geography, 61, 35-46.
- Leider, J., Meit, M., McCullough, J., Resnick, B., Dekker, D., Alfonso, Y., & Bishai, D. (2020). The State of Rural Public Health: Enduring Needs in a New Decade.. American journal of public health, e1-e8.
- 12. <u>Singh, G., & Siahpush, M. (2013). Widening Rural–Urban Disparities in All-Cause Mortality</u> <u>and Mortality from Major Causes of Death in the USA, 1969–2009. Journal of Urban Health,</u> <u>91, 272-292.</u>
- Tang, D., Lin, Z., & Chen, F. (2020). Moving beyond living arrangements: the role of family and friendship ties in promoting mental health for urban and rural older adults in China. Aging & Mental Health, 24, 1523 - 1532.
- 14. <u>Sørensen, J. (2014). Rural–Urban Differences in Life Satisfaction: Evidence from the European</u> <u>Union. Regional Studies, 48, 1451 - 1466.</u>
- 15. <u>Amato, P. (1993). Urban-rural differences in helping friends and family members. Social</u> <u>Psychology Quarterly, 56, 249-262.</u>

- 16. <u>Sutcliffe, J., & Crabbe, B. (1963). Incidence and Degrees of Friendship in Urban and Rural</u> <u>Areas. Social Forces, 42, 60-67.</u>
- 17. <u>Oishi, S., & Kesebir, S. (2012)</u>. <u>Optimal Social-Networking Strategy Is a Function of</u> <u>Socioeconomic Conditions</u>. <u>Psychological Science</u>, 23, 1542 - 1548.
- Mateu, P., Vásquez, E., Zúñiga, J., & Ibáñez, F. (2020). Happiness and poverty in the very poor Peru: measurement improvements and a consistent relationship. Quality & Quantity, 54, 1075-1094.
- 19. Dahl, E., Fløtten, T., & Lorentzen, T. (2008). Poverty Dynamics and Social Exclusion: An Analysis of Norwegian Panel Data. Journal of Social Policy, 37, 231 249.
- 20. Peters, M., Simmons, L., & Rhodes, G. (2008). Testosterone is associated with mating success but not attractiveness or masculinity in human males. Animal Behaviour, 76, 297-303.
- 21. <u>Valentine, K., Li, N., Penke, L., & Perrett, D. (2014)</u>. Judging a Man by the Width of His Face. <u>Psychological Science</u>, 25, 806 - 811.
- 22. <u>Roney, J., & Simmons, Z. (2008). Women's estradiol predicts preference for facial cues of</u> <u>men's testosterone. Hormones and Behavior, 53, 14-19.</u>
- 23. Edelstein, R., Chopik, W., & Kean, E. (2011). Sociosexuality moderates the association between testosterone and relationship status in men and women. Hormones and Behavior, 60, 248-255.
- 24. <u>Baumeister, R. (2000). Gender differences in erotic plasticity: the female sex drive as socially</u> <u>flexible and responsive.</u> Psychological bulletin, 126 3, 347-74; discussion 385-9.
- 25. <u>Baumeister, R. (2004). Gender and erotic plasticity: sociocultural influences on the sex drive.</u> <u>Sexual and Relationship Therapy, 19, 133 - 139.</u>
- 26. Sanders, A., Beecham, G., Guo, S., Dawood, K., Rieger, G., Badner, J., Gershon, E., Krishnappa, R., Kolundzija, A., Duan, J., S, J., Shi, J., Levinson, D., Mowry, B., Olincy, A., Amin, F., Cloninger, C., Svrakic, D., Silverman, J., Buccola, N., Byerley, W., Black, D., Freedman, R., Gejman, P., Bailey, J., & Martin, E. (2017). Genome-Wide Association Study of Male Sexual Orientation. Scientific Reports, 7.
- Zietsch, B., Morley, K., Shekar, S., Verweij, K., Keller, M., Macgregor, S., Wright, M., Bailey, J., & Martin, N. (2008). Genetic factors predisposing to homosexuality may increase mating success in heterosexuals. Evolution and Human Behavior, 29, 424-433.
- 28. <u>Gavrilets, S., & Rice, W. (2006). Genetic models of homosexuality: generating testable</u> predictions. Proceedings of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences, 273, 3031 - 3038.
- 29. <u>Hamer, D., Hu, S., Magnuson, V., Hu, N., & Pattatucci, A. (1993). A linkage between DNA</u> markers on the X chromosome and male sexual orientation.. Science, 261 5119, 321-7...

- 30. <u>Tu, D., Xu, R., Zhao, G., Wang, B., & Feng, T. (2016). [Research progress on molecular genetics</u> of male homosexuality]. Zhonghua yi xue yi chuan xue za zhi = Zhonghua yixue yichuanxue zazhi = Chinese journal of medical genetics, 33 4, 569-72.
- **31.** <u>Rodriguez-Larralde, A., & Paradisi, I. (2009). [Influence of genetic factors on human sexual orientation. Review]. Investigacion clinica, 50 3, 377-91.</u>
- 32. <u>Ganna, A., Verweij, K. J. H., Nivard, M. G., Maier, R., Wedow, R., Busch, A. S., Abdellaoui, A., Guo, S., Sathirapongsasuti, J. F., 23andMe Research Team, Lichtenstein, P., Lundström, S., Långström, N., Auton, A., Harris, K. M., Beecham, G. W., Martin, E. R., Sanders, A. R., Perry, J. R. B., Neale, B. M., ... Zietsch, B. P. (2019). Large-scale GWAS reveals insights into the genetic architecture of same-sex sexual behavior. Science (New York, N.Y.), 365(6456), eaat7693.</u>
- Zietsch, B., Morley, K., Shekar, S., Verweij, K., Keller, M., Macgregor, S., Wright, M., Bailey, J., <u>& Martin, N. (2008). Genetic factors predisposing to homosexuality may increase mating</u> <u>success in heterosexuals. Evolution and Human Behavior, 29, 424-433.</u>
- 34. Jonason, P., & Antoon, C. (2019). Mate preferences for educated partners: Similarities and differences in the sexes depend on mating context. Personality and Individual Differences..
- **35.** <u>De Hauw, Y., Grow, A., & Van Bavel, J. (2017). The Reversed Gender Gap in Education and Assortative Mating in Europe. European Journal of Population, 33, 445 474.</u>
- **36.** <u>Neyt, B., Vandenbulcke, S., & Baert, S. (2019). Are men intimidated by highly educated</u> women? <u>Undercover on Tinder. Economics of Education Review, 73, 101914.</u>
- 37. <u>Wu, H., Kung, F., Chen, H., & Kim, Y. (2017). Academic Success of "Tiger Cubs". Social</u> <u>Psychological and Personality Science, 8, 698 - 705.</u>
- Duckworth, A., Quinn, P., & Tsukayama, E. (2012). What No Child Left Behind Leaves Behind: <u>The Roles of IQ and Self-Control in Predicting Standardized Achievement Test Scores and</u> <u>Report Card Grades.</u>. Journal of educational psychology, 104 2, 439-451.
- Schmidt, F., Lindner, C., Etzel, J., & Retelsdorf, J. (2020). Self-Control Outdoes Fluid Reasoning in Explaining Vocational and Academic Performance—But Does It?. Frontiers in Psychology, <u>11..</u>
- 40. Duckworth, A., Taxer, J., Eskreis-Winkler, L., Galla, B., & Gross, J. (2019). Self-Control and Academic Achievement.. Annual review of psychology, 70, 373-399..
- Duckworth, A., Tsukayama, E., & May, H. (2010). Establishing Causality Using Longitudinal Hierarchical Linear Modeling: An Illustration Predicting Achievement From Self-Control. Social Psychological and Personality Science, 1, 311 - 317.
- 42. Ong, D., & Wang, J. Journal of Economic Behavior & Organization Income Attraction: an Online Dating Field Experiment.

- 43. <u>Hunter, H., Hill, T., Reid, G., Bourgeois, C., Tiller, A., & Fisher, M. L. (2019). Hi, my name is</u> wealthy: Women's dating behaviors in relation to the perceived wealth of perspective mates. <u>The Journal of the Evolutionary Studies Consortium</u>, 10, Sp. Iss. (1), 88-105.
- 44. <u>Anderson, R.C., & Klofstad, C.A. (2012). For Love or Money? The Influence of Personal</u> <u>Resources and Environmental Resource Pressures on Human Mate Preferences. Ethology,</u> <u>118, 841-849.</u>
- 45. <u>Monto, M.A., & Carey, A.G. (2014). A New Standard of Sexual Behavior? Are Claims</u> <u>Associated With the "Hookup Culture" Supported by General Social Survey Data? The Journal</u> <u>of Sex Research, 51, 605 - 615.</u>
- 46. South, S. J., & Lei, L. (2021). Why Are Fewer Young Adults Having Casual Sex? Socius, 7.
- 47. <u>Carroll, J.S., Padilla-Walker, L., Nelson, L.J., Olson, C.D., McNamara Barry, C., & Madsen, S.D.</u> (2008). Generation XXX. Journal of Adolescent Research, 23, 30 - 6.
- 48. <u>Crabbe, M., Flood, M., & Adams, K. (2024). Pornography exposure and access among young Australians: a cross-sectional study. Australian and New Zealand journal of public health, 100135.</u>
- 49. <u>R John Aitken, The changing tide of human fertility, Human Reproduction, Volume 37, Issue</u> <u>4, April 2022, Pages 629–638</u>
- 50. <u>Aitken, J. 2023. The Decline and Fall of Human Fertility. Fertility & Reproduction 05(04), pp.</u> 230–230.
- 51. Hotchkiss, A., Hotchkiss, A., Rider, C., Rider, C., Blystone, C., Blystone, C., Wilson, V., Hartig, P., Ankley, G., Foster, P., Gray, C., & Gray, L. (2008). Fifteen years after "Wingspread"--environmental endocrine disrupters and human and wildlife health: where we are today and where we need to go.. Toxicological sciences : an official journal of the Society of Toxicology, 105 2, 235-59.
- 52. <u>Mclachlan, J. (2016). Environmental signaling: from environmental estrogens to</u> <u>endocrine-disrupting chemicals and beyond. Andrology, 4.</u>
- 53. <u>Mclachlan, J. (2001). Environmental signaling: what embryos and evolution teach us about</u> <u>endocrine disrupting chemicals.. Endocrine reviews, 22 3, 319-41 .</u>
- 54. <u>Wingfield, J. (2018). Environmental Endocrinology: Insights into the Diversity of Regulatory</u> <u>Mechanisms in Life Cycles.. Integrative and comparative biology, 58 4, 790-799 .</u>
- 55. <u>Safe, S. (2000). Endocrine disruptors and human health--is there a problem? An update.</u> <u>Environmental Health Perspectives, 108, 487 - 493.</u>
- 56. <u>Rozati, R., Reddy, P., Reddanna, P., & Mujtaba, R. (2002). Role of environmental estrogens in</u> <u>the deterioration of male factor fertility. Fertility and sterility. 78 6, 1187-94 .</u>
- 57. <u>Handelsman, D. (2001). Estrogens and falling sperm counts.</u>. <u>Reproduction, fertility, and</u> <u>development, 13 4, 317-24 .</u>

- 58. Fisch, H., & Golden, R. (2003). Environmental estrogens and sperm counts. Pure and Applied Chemistry, 75, 2181 - 2193.
- 59. <u>Balabanič, D., Rupnik, M., & Klemenčič, A. (2011). Negative impact of endocrine-disrupting</u> <u>compounds on human reproductive health.. Reproduction, fertility, and development, 23 3,</u> <u>403-16 .</u>
- 60. <u>Gordon, I., Pratt, M., Bergunde, K., Zagoory-Sharon, O., & Feldman, R. (2017). Testosterone,</u> <u>oxytocin, and the development of human parental care. Hormones and Behavior, 93,</u> <u>184-192.</u>
- 61. Veenhoven, R. (1989). Does happiness bind? Marriage chances of the unhappy.
- 62. <u>Kim, S. (2011). Sociological studies on happiness in cross-national contexts: effects of economic inequality and marriage.</u>
- 63. Lucas, R., & Clark, A. (2006). DO PEOPLE REALLY ADAPT TO MARRIAGE?. Journal of Happiness Studies, 7, 405-426.
- 64. <u>Guven, C., Senik, C., & Stichnoth, H. (2010). You Can't Be Happier than Your Wife—Happiness</u> <u>Gaps and Divorce (SSRN Scholarly Paper 1540610). Social Science Research Network.</u>
- 65. <u>Gottman, J., Coan, J., Carrére, S., & Swanson, C. (1998)</u>. Predicting Marital Happiness and Stability from Newlywed Interactions. Journal of Marriage and Family, 60, 5-22.
- 66. Vollset, S. et al. (2020). Fertility, mortality, migration, and population scenarios for 195 countries and territories from 2017 to 2100: a forecasting analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study. Lancet (London, England), 396, 1285 - 1306.
- 67. <u>Léridon, H. (2020). World population outlook: Explosion or implosion?. Population and</u> <u>societies, 1-4.</u>
- Bongaarts, J. (2020). United Nations Department of Economic and Social Affairs, Population DivisionWorld Family Planning 2020: Highlights, United Nations Publications, 2020. 46 p... Population and Development Review.
- 69. <u>Gerland, P., Raftery, A., Ševčíková, H., Li, N., Gu, D., Spoorenberg, T., Alkema, L., Fosdick, B.,</u> <u>Chunn, J., Lalic, N., Bay, G., Buettner, T., Heilig, G., & Wilmoth, J. (2014). World population</u> <u>stabilization unlikely this century. Science, 346, 234 - 237.</u>
- 70. Wang, X., & Long, Y. (2023). Future shrinking cities on the globe: A projection map for 2020–2100 based on global gridded population dataset. Environment and Planning B: Urban Analytics and City Science, 50, 1994 - 1997.
- 71. <u>Kc, S., & Lutz, W. (2017). The human core of the shared socioeconomic pathways: Population scenarios by age, sex and level of education for all countries to 2100. Global Environmental Change, 42, 181 192.</u>
- 72. <u>Friebel, G., Lalanne, M., Richter, B., Schwardmann, P., & Seabright, P. (2021). Gender</u> <u>differences in social interactions. Journal of Economic Behavior & Organization.</u>

- 73. <u>Petric, D. (2022). The Introvert-Ambivert-Extrovert Spectrum. Open Journal of Medical</u> <u>Psychology.</u>
- 74. Eysenck, H.J. (1956). The inheritance of extraversion-introversion. Acta Psychologica, 12, 95-110.
- **75.** <u>Gottesman, I.I. (1966). Genetic variance in adaptive personality traits. Journal of child</u> <u>psychology and psychiatry, and allied disciplines, 7 3-4, 199-208.</u>
- 76. <u>Scarr, S.W. (1969). Social introversion--extraversion as a heritable response. Child</u> <u>development, 40 3, 823-32</u>.
- 77. <u>Vukasović, T., & Bratko, D. (2015)</u>. <u>Heritability of personality: A meta-analysis of behavior</u> genetic studies.. Psychological bulletin, 141 4, 769-85.
- 78. <u>Mahmoud, R., Kimonis, V., & Butler, M. (2022). Genetics of Obesity in Humans: A Clinical</u> <u>Review. International Journal of Molecular Sciences, 23.</u>
- 79. Loos, R., & Yeo, G. (2021). The genetics of obesity: from discovery to biology. Nature Reviews. Genetics, 23, 120 - 133.
- 80. <u>Bouchard, C. (2021). Genetics of Obesity: What We Have Learned Over Decades of Research.</u> <u>Obesity, 29.</u>
- 81. <u>Albuquerque, D., Nóbrega, C., Manco, L., & Padez, C. (2017). The contribution of genetics and environment to obesity. British Medical Bulletin, 123, 159–173.</u>
- Eubig, P., Aguiar, A., & Schantz, S. (2010). Lead and PCBs as Risk Factors for Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder. Environmental Health Perspectives, 118, 1654 - 1667.
- 83. Xi, T., & Wu, J. (2021). A Review on the Mechanism Between Different Factors and the Occurrence of Autism and ADHD. Psychology Research and Behavior Management, 14, 393 -403..
- Thapar, A., Harrington, R., Ross, K., & McGuffin, P. (2000). Does the definition of ADHD affect heritability?. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 39 12, 1528-36.
- 85. <u>Demontis, D. et al (2018)</u>. <u>Discovery of the first genome-wide significant risk loci for attention</u> <u>deficit/hyperactivity disorder. Nature Genetics</u>, 51, 63 75.
- Faraone, S., & Larsson, H. (2018). Genetics of attention deficit hyperactivity disorder. Molecular Psychiatry, 24, 562 - 575.
- Figee, M., Riva-Posse, P., Choi, K., Bederson, L., Mayberg, H., & Kopell, B. (2022). Deep Brain Stimulation for Depression. Neurotherapeutics, 19, 1229 - 1245.
- Mayberg, H., Lozano, A., Voon, V., McNeely, H., Seminowicz, D., Hamani, C., Schwalb, J., & Kennedy, S. (2005). Deep Brain Stimulation for Treatment-Resistant Depression. Neuron, 45, 651-660.

- Kennedy, S., Giacobbe, P., Rizvi, S., Placenza, F., Nishikawa, Y., Mayberg, H., & Lozano, A. (2011). Deep brain stimulation for treatment-resistant depression: follow-up after 3 to 6 years.. The American journal of psychiatry, 168 5, 502-10.
- 90. <u>Nasser, J., & Przeworski, A. (2017). A Comparison of Two Brief Present Moment Awareness</u> <u>Training Paradigms in High Worriers. Mindfulness, 8, 775-787.</u>
- 91. <u>Ling, Y., Nefs, H., Morina, N., Heynderickx, I., & Brinkman, W. (2014). A Meta-Analysis on the</u> <u>Relationship between Self-Reported Presence and Anxiety in Virtual Reality Exposure</u> <u>Therapy for Anxiety Disorders. PLoS ONE, 9.</u>
- 92. Felnhofer, A., Kothgassner, O., Hetterle, T., Beutl, L., Hlavacs, H., & Kryspin-Exner, I. (2014). Afraid to Be There? Evaluating the Relation Between Presence, Self-Reported Anxiety, and Heart Rate in a Virtual Public Speaking Task. Cyberpsychology, behavior and social networking. 17 5, 310-6.
- 93. <u>Crosswell, A., Coccia, M., & Epel, E. (2020). Mind wandering and stress: When you don't like</u> <u>the present moment.. Emotion.</u>
- 94. <u>Hou, B., Wu, Y., & Huang, Y. (2023). How Does Religious Belief Affect Happiness of Older</u> Adults: The Participation Effect and Support Effect. Religions.
- 95. <u>VanderWeele, T. (2017). Religious Communities and Human Flourishing. Current Directions in</u> <u>Psychological Science, 26, 476 - 481.</u>
- 96. Liu, T., Wu, L., Yang, Y., & Jia, Y. (2020). Exploratory Analysis of the Relationship between Happiness and Religious Participation within China. Religions.
- 97. Ellison, C. (1991). Religious involvement and subjective well-being.. Journal of health and social behavior, 32 1, 80-99.
- 98. <u>Lim, C., & Putnam, R. (2010). Religion, Social Networks, and Life Satisfaction. American</u> Sociological Review, 75, 914 - 933.
- 99. <u>Tatangelo, G., McCabe, M., Campbell, S., & Szoeke, C. (2017). Gender, marital status and longevity.</u> Maturitas, 100, 64-69.
- 100. <u>Schünemann, J., Strulik, H., & Trimborn, T. (2019). The marriage gap: Optimal aging and death</u> in partnerships. Review of Economic Dynamics.
- 101. <u>Gellatly, C., & Störmer, C. (2017). How does marriage affect length of life? Analysis of a</u> <u>French historical dataset from an evolutionary perspective. Evolution and Human Behavior,</u> <u>38, 536-545.</u>
- 102. Jia, H., & Lubetkin, E. (2020). Life expectancy and active life expectancy by marital status among older U.S. adults: Results from the U.S. Medicare Health Outcome Survey (HOS). SSM - Population Health, 12.
- 103. <u>Takada, A., & Noguchi, T. (2024)</u>. Diversity and transition of stepfamilies among the G|ui and <u>Gllana</u>. Hunter Gatherer Research.

- 104. <u>Dira, S. (2024). Demography and stepfamilies among the Chabu of southwestern Ethiopia.</u> <u>Hunter Gatherer Research.</u>
- 105. Fouts, H. (2024). Stepfathers and grandmothers. Hunter Gatherer Research.
- 106. Lewis, H. M., Vinicius, L., Strods, J., Mace, R., & Migliano, A. B. (2014). High mobility explains demand sharing and enforced cooperation in egalitarian hunter-gatherers. Nature <u>Communications</u>, 5(1), 5789.
- 107. Dahl, J., Gould, K., & Nadler, R. (1993). Testicle size of orang-utans in relation to body size.. American journal of physical anthropology, 90 2, 229-36.
- 108. <u>Fujii-Hanamoto, H., Matsubayashi, K., Nakano, M., Kusunoki, H., & Enomoto, T. (2011). A</u> <u>comparative study on testicular microstructure and relative sperm production in gorillas,</u> <u>chimpanzees, and orangutans. American Journal of Primatology, 73.</u>
- 109. Morton, O. (1997). Are men gorillas or chimpanzees?. Nursing standard (Royal College of Nursing (Great Britain) : 1987), 12 11, 27.
- 110. <u>Kandler, C. (2020). A meta-analytic review of nature and nurture in religiousness across the</u> <u>lifespan.. Current opinion in psychology, 40, 106-113</u>.
- 111. <u>D'Onofrio, B., Eaves, L., Murrelle, L., Maes, H., & Spilka, B. (1999). Understanding biological and social influences on religious affiliation, attitudes, and behaviors: a behavior genetic perspective. Journal of personality, 67 6, 953-84.</u>
- 112. <u>Bradshaw, M., & Ellison, C. (2008). Do Genetic Factors Influence Religious Life? Findings from</u> <u>a Behavior Genetic Analysis of Twin Siblings. Journal for the Scientific Study of Religion, 47,</u> <u>529-544.</u>
- 113. <u>D'Ambrosio, C., Jäntti, M., & Lepinteur, A. (2019). Money and Happiness: Income, Wealth and Subjective Well-Being. Social Indicators Research, 148, 47 66.</u>
- 114. <u>Boyce, C., Brown, G., & Moore, S. (2010). Money and Happiness. Psychological Science, 21,</u> <u>471 - 475.</u>
- 115. <u>Matz, S., Gladstone, J., & Stillwell, D. (2016). Money Buys Happiness When Spending Fits Our</u> <u>Personality. Psychological Science, 27, 715 - 725.</u>
- 116. <u>Buttrick, N., & Oishi, S. (2023). Money and happiness: A consideration of history and</u> <u>psychological mechanisms. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United</u> <u>States of America, 120.</u>
- 117. Dunn, E., Gilbert, D., & Wilson, T. (2011). If money doesn't make you happy, then you probably aren't spending it right. Journal of Consumer Psychology, 21, 115-125.
- 118. <u>Gan, G., Hill, A., Yeung, P., Keesing, S., & Netto, J. (2020). Pet ownership and its influence on</u> mental health in older adults. Aging & Mental Health, 24, 1605 - 1612.

- 119. <u>Herzog, H. (2011). The Impact of Pets on Human Health and Psychological Well-Being.</u> <u>Current Directions in Psychological Science, 20, 236 - 239.</u>
- 120. <u>Bao, K., & Schreer, G. (2016). Pets and Happiness: Examining the Association between Pet</u> <u>Ownership and Wellbeing. Anthrozoös, 29, 283 - 296.</u>
- 121. Garza, E., Hoppmann, C., Ashe, M., Gerstorf, D., Madden, K., & Michalowski, V. (2020). Everyday Goal Pursuit in Older Couples: Lessons Learned From Electronic Daily Life Assessments. Innovation in Aging, 4, 414 - 414.
- 122. <u>Shah, J. (2003). Automatic for the people: how representations of significant others implicitly</u> affect goal pursuit.. Journal of personality and social psychology, 84 4, 661-81.
- 123. Fishbach, A., & Tu, Y. (2016). Pursuing Goals with Others. Social and Personality Psychology Compass, 10, 298-312.
- 124. Spaak, J., Tomlinson, G., McGowan, C., Soleas, G., Morris, B., Picton, P., Notarius, C., & Floras, J. (2010). Dose-related effects of red wine and alcohol on heart rate variability.. American journal of physiology. Heart and circulatory physiology, 298 6, H2226-31.
- 125. <u>Karpyak, V., Romanowicz, M., Schmidt, J., Lewis, K., & Bostwick, J. (2014). Characteristics of heart rate variability in alcohol-dependent subjects and nondependent chronic alcohol users.</u> Alcoholism, clinical and experimental research, 38 1, 9-26.
- 126. <u>Barnes, M., Mündel, T., & Stannard, S. (2010). Acute alcohol consumption aggravates the</u> <u>decline in muscle performance following strenuous eccentric exercise.</u> Journal of science and <u>medicine in sport, 13 1, 189-93.</u>
- 127. Adinoff, B., Ruether, K., Krebaum, S., Iranmanesh, A., & Williams, M. (2003). Increased salivary cortisol concentrations during chronic alcohol intoxication in a naturalistic clinical sample of men.. Alcoholism, clinical and experimental research, 27 9, 1420-7.
- 128. Merry, J., & Marks, V. (1971). Ethanol and Cortisol Release in Man. , 199-206.
- 129. <u>Magrys, S., Olmstead, M., Wynne-Edwards, K., & Balodis, I. (2013). neuroendocrinological responses to alcohol intoxication in healthy males: relationship with impulsivity, drinking behavior, and subjective effects.</u> Psychophysiology, 50 2, 204-9.
- 130. Meers, J., Stout-Aguilar, J., & Nowakowski, S. (2019). Sex differences in sleep health. Sleep and Health.
- 131. Kocevska, D. et al (2020). Sleep characteristics across the lifespan in 1.1 million people from the Netherlands, United Kingdom and United States: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Nature Human Behaviour, 5, 113 - 122.
- 132. <u>Bixler, E., Papaliaga, M., Vgontzas, A., Lin, H., Pejovic, S., Karataraki, M., Vela-bueno, A., & Chrousos, G. (2009). Women sleep objectively better than men and the sleep of young women is more resilient to external stressors: effects of age and menopause. Journal of Sleep Research, 18.</u>